FRANKLIN COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Monday March 18, 2019
Franklin County Administration Building
113 Market Street
Louisburg, NC

5:00 P.M. - Special Called Meeting - Fiscal Outlook and Capital Funding Update

6:55 P.M. - Season of Prayer - Commissioner David Bunn

7:00 P.M. - Official Meeting Begins - Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

ITEM 1

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.

CONSENT AGENDA

February 18, 2019 Minutes

February 25, 2019 Minutes

Releases, Adjustments, Refunds, and Tax Collection Report

NC DOT Grant Agreement for Airport's Master Layout Plan

Master Plan Update Work Authorization

Extension of cellular contract at Franklinton Water Tank location and
reconvey the old easement

Resolution of support to dedicate and rename a section of Highway 401 South
to commemorate the service of The Honorable James Davis Speed

mmoO®

9

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

This is the time set aside by the Board of Commissioners to allow individuals five
minutes to address the Board on issues concerning the county.

REQUEST FOR SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER (SRO)

Sheriff Kent Winstead will ask the Board to consider approval of an SRO at Bunn
High School effective March 1, 2019. The Bunn Town Council voted to
discontinue providing the SRO position on February 25, 2019. An amount of
$20,000 is available for the position this fiscal year. An amount of $60,000 is
allocated for the position and available via grant funding from the school system
for 2019-2020.

ACTION REQUESTED: Consider approval.




*The Board is asked to consider individual appointments/reappointments to the following board and commissions.

ITEM 9.

ITEM 10.

ITEM 11

Airport Advisory Board
Board of Adjustment

Department of Aging Advisory Board
Economic Development Commission
Library Board

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board

Planning Board
Solid Waste Education Task Force

Tourism Development Authority

—rmammoOw

ACTION REQUESTED: Consider appointments/reappointments.

OTHER BUSINESS

BOARD, MANAGER AND CILERK'S COMMENTS

This is the time set aside for the Board of County Commissioners, the County
Manager, and the Clerk to the Board to report on various activities. The Board
may also discuss other items of interest.

CLOSED SESSION

The Board is asked to conduct a closed session pursuant to the following North
Carolina General Statutes:

A. NCGS143-318.11 (a)(4) Industry/Economic Development.
B. NCGS 143-318.11 (a)(3) Attorney-Client Privileged Communication



4214

WHEREAS, more than 2.7 milllon current Girl Scout members natlanwide will be celebrating 107 years of

this American traditlon, with nearly 50 million women who are former Girl Scouts and living proof of the
impact of this amazing Movement;

WHEREAS, in partniershlp with over 9,000 adult volunteers, Girl Scouts = North Caralina Coastal Pines
serves nearly 26,000 girl members In 41 central and eastern North Carolina counties, including 400 of
adult and girl members in Franklin County, North Carolina.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Franklin County Board of Commissioners does hereby applaud the commitment
Girl Scouting has made to suppart the life and leadership development of glrls and proudly proclaim the
week of March 10-16, 2019, as Girl Scout Weeak,

Item 11

RESOLUTION
FOR THE APPOINMENT OF AN INTERIM DEPUTY FINANCE OFFICER

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 159-24 states each focal government and public authority
shall appoint a Finance Officer who is responsible for providing financial safeguard and ensuring all
duties of the position are adequataly and efflciently covered; and

WHEREAS, the existing Finance Director, Jamle Holtzman, has been designated as the Finance Officer;
and

WHEREAS, these statutes also allow the Board of County Commissloners to deslgnate other staff as
Deputy Finance Officers to execute documents in her absence or disabllity;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners of Frankiin County hereby

appoint Tracy Stevenson, Finance Specialist, as Interim Deputy Finance Officer for the time perlod of
Monday, February 18, 2019 through Tuesday, April 30, 2019.

Item 1-]

To whom It may concern:

The Sheriff's Office would fke to request that the follawing county vehiclas be declared surplus for the purpase of selling
them at public auction. These vehicles are no Jonger In operable condition, and it would be cost prehibltive to repair

them, These vehicles came from Frankiln County Sheriff's Office, and are currently stored at the Frankiln County
Sherif’s Office at 2857, Kemp Rd., Lovisburg.

(*) Vehiete mileage denated with {®) are shown with last recorded mileage before odometers stopped working.

Year Make Model Color VING Mileage
1 2008 Ford CrownVic White 2fafp71v88x134475 200K+ {*)
2 2008 Ford CrownVic White Aalp7ivBn134476  200k+ (*)
3, 1998 Lexus Sedan White tBOM2BROWSUZ0425 210K+ {*)
4, 2000 Ford Crown Vic Brown Malp71w2yn137428 195344
5 2010 Dadge Charger White 2b3azadctdah302229 204152
6. 2006 Nissan Infinity Slack jnkev51236m502538 195709
8. 1998 Chev PanelTruck  White 1gbJp32r7w3313300  14162.6
9, Unknown Utlity Trailer  Black 2b22?7988203484t
10, Unknown kennel/trailer White unknown
Respecifully, B
Kent Winstead
Sheriff

February 18, 2019 Minutes




4216

NC COOPERATIVE
EXTENSION

What is 4-H

+ 6 Million Participants Natiohwide
= 208,000 Youth in NC
* Over 21,000 Volunleersin NC

4-H is learning, exploring and discovering, making new
friends, developing new skills, becoming l=aders that help
shape their communities.

gress
NC EXStnsion
What Is 4-H
- STEM
 AGRICULTURE
» HEALTHY LIVING
» CITIZENSHIP
Bresr EHD

NC CCOPERATIVE
EXTENSION

“4-H Empowers Youlh With The Skills
To Lead For a Lifetime*

+ President Jimimy Carter

« Jacqueline Kennedy Onassis

« General Henry Hugh Shelton

+ Ag Commissioner Steve Troxler
» Elaine Marshall

Rrenr

February 18, 2019 Minutes




4218

N COOPERATIVE
BETENSIOM

Make it With Wool Compatition*
NC 4-H Comroes®

NC 4-H Henor Club®
Shooting Sports Program®
State 4-H Project Award
Stote Pholo Contest*

Stata 4-H Council Officers*
District 4-H Officers®

Teen Retreats®

TRY

Wildlifer Habitat Evaluation
Program

What does NC 4-H have to offec? (Cont'd)

Youth Volunteer Awards®
4-HAcevement Plan®
County Activity Day”

County Council*

Expressive Arts

State Fair 4-H Opposturities*

NC COOPERATIVE
HETEMSIOM

In addition Franklin County offers:

» Schook Enrichment + Workshops on Public
* Volunteer Trainings Spaaking, Prasentations,
- Advisory Laadership Couneil it Rocond Bocks,
* Young Farmar and Rancher other He skills 2
Program " s
. SizfingSummerSessons  © oomvumily Sarvica
. 0 ies ot a varisty of + Citizenship Opportunities
differee piversitiessuchgs  ° 4-H Summer
but nol Emited to NCSU, Imernships for Teens .
NCAST Stala Uriversity,and ~ *  Leadership Gpportunities
University of Mount Olive. + Partnerships with other
Franklin County organizations
xenr Y
NC ExTension
Joining 4-H
-Free to join
-Easy online 4-H enroliment
-No uniforms
Visit: hitps./incdh ces.nesu,edudhonlines
Qe

February 18, 2019 Minutes




4220

B. Bunn Planning & Zoning Board ET]
The Board was asked to reappoint Russ Vollmer.

Commissioner Schriver made a motion to reappoint Russ Vollmer, seconded by

Commissioner Speed. The motion duly carried approval with all present voting
“AYE"

[8 OTHER BUSINESS

Commissioner Bunn commented on his interest in the Brunch Bill which would allow Sunday

morning alcoholic beverage sales beginning at 10:00 A.M. Commissioner Foy said he too was
interested.

County Attorney Pete Tomlinson stated the matter could be considered by referendum during
the general election.

Commissioner Foy made a motion to request the Board of Elections place the referendum on the
ballot in the next election. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Schriver and was
approved 5 to 1, with Commissionet Dunston voting “NO."

Chairman Dunston then acknowledged the presence of Ms. Michelle Chavis, the new director of
the Franklin County Board of Elections.

8. BOARD, MANAGER AND CLERK'S COMMENTS

This was the time ser aside for the Board of County Commissioners, the County Manager, and

the Clerk to the Board to report on various activities. The Board may also discuss other items of
interest.

County Clerk Kristen G. King: No comments were offered.
Commissioner Foy: No comments were offered.

Commissioner Bunn: No comments were offered.
Commissioner Jones: Comunissioner Jones was absent.
Commissioner Dunston: No comments wete offered.
Commissioner Schriver: No comments were offered.

Commissioner Dickerson: Commissioner Dickerson commented on the 4-H presentation made

earlier in the evening, She stated her sons have been involved in all aspects of 4-H and have
learned much by participating.

Commissioner Speed: No comments were offered.

County Manager Angela L. Harris:

¢ Mrs. Harris reminded the Board of its nexr retreat scheduled for February 25, 2019.

® Mrs. Harris noted a meeting with the Local Government Commissioner was scheduled
later in the week (February 21, 2019) to discuss upcoming wastewater projects.

* Mrs. Harris asked Public Utilities Director Chris Doherty to provide a brief project
update on the Franklinton and Youngsville Pump Station replacement. The Youngsville
Regional Pump Station is nearly complete and in operation. The Franklinton Regional
Pump Station is scheduled for equipment startup within a week. Tie in is expected
within a couple of weeks. Mr. Doherty’s presentation follows.

February 18, 2019 Minutes



4212

YOUNGSVILLE REGIONAL PUMP STATION 'A ﬂﬂw

F et M et

et T
ek

FRANKLINTON REGIONAL PUMP STATION Alfpnidin
g o = 4 bR

N
-

February 18, 2019 Minutes



4224

{blank page)

February 18, 2019 Minutes



4226

What to Expand and Create

+ Water and Sewer Systems: The water system must be
self-sustaining. The sewer infrastructure is aging and
must be expanded to address new commerclal and
residentlal development.

+ Improve County’s Capital Assets: County facllities
need improvement. GCreate a coordinated plan for new
facilities to improve our aassats and hetter serve the
citizens. Plan for staff transitions due to retirements.

= Future School Needs: Match county’s growth to future
needs and develop a facllities plan with School Board.

What to Expand and Create

* Create a County Identity: Establish another
farmers’ market; expand marketing strategies to

develop a sense of community pride In our history
and future.

* Broadband: Continue to support broadband
expansion, and manage citizen expectations.

“We made the hard decisions.”
klfin County<( 2018

What are Your Thoughts?
Reactions?

* Do these ideas and issues still resonate In 20197
» Are any of them no longer relevant?

* Is there anything new to add to this list?

February 25, 2019 Minutes



4228

Wicked Public Problems

* Relentless:

* They cannot be solved in the traditional sense;

« They may be mitigated or minimized, but they
will not go away;

* They require long-term strategles and continuity
of actlon.

Wicked Public Problems
Three baslc principles:
- Principle #1: You don’t govern alone

+ Principle #2: Government Is well-positioned to
serve as a convener

- Principle #3: Aim to shrink the problem and be
willing to adjust over time

Staff Presentations

Scott Hammerbacher, Director
Franklin County Planning 3 Inspections Department

Chris Doherty, Director
Franklin County Public Utilities Department

Richie Duncan, Director
Franklin County Economic Development Commission

February 25, 2019 Minutes



4230

MUNICIPALITY FOBULATION (:H'i

Change In Pagulation (of Towns in Franklin County

e
i {NICRMATION PR CUTRL |
PrARNING ¢ -
- ]
E |
el 1
[ ER ] |
D".
2 ]
!I- ot
- uar
10 -
- R w ]
- " |_
i P— [ iy ettt
LU VS

Challengest &
Ofi il
Residential =
Growfhits =

Iransportation

February 23, 2019 Minutes



4232

N Y
- v 7 \ar-’ “u
. .

o p y 5 1
J JP:I/ R ‘\ ; i LJ L

'ﬁlhnklin

11114
Critical Issues Facing Public Utilities -~
Nt

o Water Supply U o § 3 St

h-). ) /‘—i = \M
- . Agmg_jnfrasl&mture{ y “ Al .

. - .y ) ¢ 2 e

" FUng_u_gg for Capital \(lmptovemcr}yE?g[pmthE_grsowalb N N

(.

o

WATER SUPPLY -
§ e T
- .
e
Fronklimon WTE: 1.59 mgd
Louisbiury: 0.67 mgd
Henrlarson: 3,90 mad - S
TOTAL: 4.16 MGD | . i N
*Maximum daily capacity —
musi compare fa pealk daily ! .
consumption T, = R,
i . = r ; =
J L ~ { ] . A ) L,
« Oy 2929 the number vt projected customers a to be 10,825
+ Avesnge daily demand of 1.BB MG, peaking factor brings the demand to 5.82 MG

i W

J ‘/i( " N r‘--‘JTU

_. s T

4% Franklin

Famounty

Ao b i ey

Mg’ -

(J
%

WATER SUPPLY - . i
it g ot it

i e S [ EEETE )

| i TR,

. l1' : 1 1 o _l

3 emm + 1” bt ] gt '-‘-‘”‘i“‘ ! w-i

N =]

; 1 s e T ]
At ES ' T

| gl TS TRTTEIIEA g

1!1 H”l N " A 11_'.T:i=-‘= 4 5 3 :—; 1! X Si 3 ﬂu

’éf&nklin

unty|

LS T e

E
£
) satimewe

February 25, 2019 Minutes



4234

AGING INFRASTRUCTURE -

S
+ Within Ine past 2 years replaced over 75 lead goosenecks

- Qverthe last 3 years repalred over { 00 minor feaks {< 37
e o

J
+ Ovet e 1ast 3 years repaired aver 50 major leaks (> 3°)

. Since 2015 replaced/added 32,250 tinear leat of waler line

L [!
i iy
,

- Franklinton utifittes install circa $920 - 1925 ’}

£ Franklin

¥ oty
| A bk Lt ! mmualy

+ 12* water main - Lane Slore Road
» 12" waler main —Cedar Creek'Road
+ 12" water main - Holden Road Re B
+ 12" ater main — Peach Orchard Road W/ R
« “8"aler main - Hi %

0.5 M@ Water Tank - east of Youngsvile
: -?.dmawmumx-ea_s_t‘mqumwn

i’

rp
. vumgsyneuulmesiiistai'ér:a1930 g 3
. d X L 5..‘_,' b
o~
S Franklin
CAPITAL PROJECTS -  y=County
L— _
« Ray's Creek Cutfallrehabilitation )
- Cedar Creek Outfall rehablitation=" D

&.,)

J,/ e N

J L.J
]
f""r U l"'\_/
anklin
FUNDING for CAPITAL . i} ._.__g.my
i - e
= Apply for Grants
+ USDA {Federal) g
- SRF (Federal) J L —
» CWSRF (State) - | .__j _
+ DWSRF(State) = - B
. Lou},oczemnﬂemstmnns{stateappmf } L B " e
+ Traditional FInanCemymy s : \J et
. systerrfDeveIopmmiFees ’h, L
DepamnenlalFundsa Wy, 5\ s ] h

February 25, 2019 Minutes



4136

e - T —

Triangle North Exacutive Airport
$12.1M expansion toinclude 6,500° runway
$1.6M LED Uighting Rehabifitation
$301K Master Layout Plan
S225K Alrfleld Malntensnce

tsn;i

Wy

February 25, 2019 Minutes

| L 2
rankiin Coun




4138

(blank page)

February 25, 2019 Minutes



TL'LI9E'LYO'SE
9Z LIL'¥9

TL L9E'LPO SE
92 LTL'¥9

INI + SIWd LOGY
aIvd LISTYIINI

66°9%0°LVE'T
St 059'286°VE
P¥ L69'6E26'9E

66°9V0D'LY6'T
S 069°286 ' PE
PP LES'B6E6°9E

dTdVATHDHEY
SLNAWAYd OOV
1119 Jaisnray

B0 EL LB 6LE"FTIT
E0'6TL'BT £E6°"T656¢€
80" €L LB GLE'FTT
€0°6TL'BT €6 TES'6E
SI40-HITHM SLNNODSId
SINAWLSNCaOY SLNAWNHLYEY

adzunsae

T d

LB 166 0T LE 6BT'6LA'PE
00° PE'0LS'0SE '9E 00-
IIVISH TVEY - 02 XU9D0FIYD '810Z ¥VHX ¥Od 'TVIOLENS
L8 T166'0T LE 6BT'6LB'PE
Qo0- PE OLS'0S6°9¢E 00" 004
FIVIST TYdd - 0Z AM0DILVYD '8T0Z dVHA
SANNIFd SINIWAYG

T1Id qIanIoxd

JA0dHY IUVHWWNS STEVAIIONY SINONODOY
YOIDITIOD XVLI ALNNOD NITANYYL

TIId TYNIDIY0 dTIVAIEOIY D3d a0 9OHO

«0Dd, :SHOYYHD ONICNTONI

610Z/82Z/20 031 810Z/T0/T0 IONVY FLVA XUINHE
dTOIHAA YOLOW -

0t 03 HIVLSH 'I¥HY - 0 :*SHLYODILYD uvY
8T0C O3 810¢ :SUYEA TIId

joogaavqs
QE:ET 6T0T/T0/E0



ITEM 1-D

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet

Requested Meeting Date:  3/18/19 # of attachment (s) _ 1

Item Title (asit should appear on the agenda): NC DOT Grant Agreement for Airport’s Master Layout Plan
Initiated by (Name, ob Title): Bo Carson, Interim Airport Manager

Board action proposed: Approval of grant agreement for Airport's Master Plan Update

Is a public hearing needed? No

Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please note all that apply.
County Manager X County Attorney Finance Director

Summary of Request:

Triangle North Executive Airport’s (TNEA)'s master layout plan was approved by the Franklin County Board of
Commissioners on January 7, 2019. The NC Division of Aviation has recelved ali paperwork for this grant and
has approved the work authorization process to begin. Requesting the board’s permission to have the grant
agreement for the Master Layout Plan approved. The funding of this grant will be through the Alrport’s non-

primary entitlement (NPE) fund by the NC Department of Transportation.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:
O APPROVED
O DENIED
ACTION:

DATE:

1]



><Di\ﬁ“5“IONAOF AVIATION

GRANT AGREEMENT
STATE AID TO AIRPORTS BLOCK GRANT AIRPORT: TRIANGLE NORTH
B8ETWEEN EXECUTIVE

THE N. C. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
AN AGENCY OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

AND PROJECT NO: 36237.31.17.1
FRANKILIN COUNTY

This Agreement is hereby made and entered into by and between the NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION (hereinafier referred to as “Department™) and FRANKLIN COUNTY, the public agency owning the

TRIANGLE NORTH EXECUTIVE AIRPORT (hereinafter referred to as “Sponsor™),

This agreement shall be effective on and shall terminate on
MAY 30, 2022 with the option to extend, if mutually agreed upon, through a wrilten modification. Pre-award costs included
on the Code and Category of Expenditure Section of the AV-501/AV-304 of the project’s Request for Aid (RFA) Application
are authorized,

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Department has received the npproval of the Federal Aviation Administration to administer certain
Airpost Improvement Program Funds in North Carolina under the provisions of the FAA Modernization and Reform Act of
2002

WHEREAS. the Department has approved a grant of funds to the Sponsor under the State Block Grant Program
Non-Primary Entitlement funds.

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has made a formal application dated FEBRUARY 4, 2019 to the Department for
Non-Primary Entitlement funds for the TRIANGLE NORTH EXECUTIVE AIRPORT: and

WHEREAS, a grant in the amount of $369.853 as allocated on the attached cover letter or any subsequent cover letters
(if applicable), not to exceed 90 percent of the federal share of the final, eligible project costs of $410,948 has been approved
subject o the conditions and limitations herein: and

WHEREAS, the Non-Primary Entitlement funds will be used for the following approved project;

AIRPORT MASTER PLAN

DOA FORM REVISED 122018 Page 1ol 12



APPENDIX A6.4.1
TITLE VI CLAUSES FOR COMPLIANCE WITII NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

During the performance of this contract, the conlractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred
to as the "contractor") agrees as follows;

i

(8]

Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Title VI List
of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract,

Nondiscrimination: The contractar, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the
cantract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR, Part 21,

Selicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations. either
by compelitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including
procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier wiil be notified by the
contractor of the contractor's obligations under this controct and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin,

Information and Reports: The contractor will provide al! information and reports required by the Acts, the
Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources
of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses 10 furnish the
information, the Contractor will 50 certify to the sponsor or the Federa) Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and
will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: Jn the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non discrimination provisions
of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may
determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a.  Withholding payments 1o the contractor under the contract until the coatractor complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Pravisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of parngraphs one through six in every
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations
and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement
as the Recipient or the FAA may direct as 2 means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a
subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter inlo any
lirigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In addition. the Contractor may request the United States to enter
into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

DOA FORM REVISFD 1272018 Poge 30f 12



APPENDIX A6.43
TITLE VI CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE
ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM

The following clauscs will be included in deeds, licenses. feases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the North
Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) pursuant to the provisions of the Airport Improvement Program grant
Assurnces;

A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, ctc. as appropriate) for himselffherself, histher heirs, personal representatives,
successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case
of deeds and leases add “as a covenant running with the land"} that:

In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this (deed,
license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a Federal Aviation Administration activity. facility, or program is
extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee,
permittee, etc.) will maitain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by
the Nondiscrimination Acts and Regulations listed in he Pertinent List of Nondiscrimination Authorities (as may be
amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in,
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.

B. With respect lo licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants,
the NCDOT will heve the right to terminate the (lease, license, permit, eic.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said
lands and facilities thercon, and hold the same as if the (lcase. license, permit, ete.) had never been made or issucd.*

C. With respect to g deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, the NCDOT will have
the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon. and the above described lands and facilities will there
upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the VCDOT and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clnuse and related language to be used only when it is determined that such 2 clause is necessary ta make clear the
purpose of Title V1.)

DDA FORM REVISED 122018 Page 5of 12



APPENDIX A6.4.5
TITLE V1 LIST OF PERTINENT NONDISCRIMINATION ACTS AND AUTIIORITIES

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafer referred
to as the "Contractor"} agrees to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities: including but not limited

to:

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Anthorities:

Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.. 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin);

49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-nssisted programs of the Department of Transportation—
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), ( prohibits
unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs
and projects):

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27,

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, ns amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis
of age);

Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended. (prohibits discrimination
based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

The Civil Rights Restaration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title V1
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of
the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or
not);

Titles IT and II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the bosis of disability in the
operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation. and certain
testing cntities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R.
paris 37 and 38:

The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) {prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

Exccutive Order 12898, Federzl Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income
Populations, which ensures Nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and
activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minarity and low-income
populations;

Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited Englisk Proficiency, and resulting
agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of Limited English proficiency
{LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

Title 1X of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex
in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

DOA FORM REVISED 1272018 Page 7of 12



SECTION A: SPONSOR'S ASSURANCES: GENERAL CONDITIONS

A-1.  The Sponsor certifies that it holds fee simple title to the property on which this project is to be constructed. In the
event any work is proposed on property which has an cascment or leasc in the Sponsor's name, the Sponsor agrees that it will
comply with the Department's conditions and receive written approval from the Department prior to any construction on such

lease or ensements. This condition does not apply to planning projects.

A-2.  The Sponsor agrees to operate the Airport for the use and benefit of the general public and shall not deny reasonable

access (o public Facilities by the general public.

A-3.  The Sponsor agrees to operate, maintain, and control the Airport in a safe and serviceable condition for a minimum
of twenty (20) years following the date of this Agreement and shall immediately undertake, or cause to be undertaken, such

action to correct safety deficiencies as may be brought to its altention by the Department.

A-4. The Sponsor agrees that any land purchased. facilities canstructed, or equipment acguired under this Agreement shall
not be sold, swapped, leased, or otherwise transferred from the control af the Sponsor without written approvel of the

Department.

A-3.  The Sponsor agrees that the state share of any land purchased, facilities constructed, or equipment acquired under this
Agreement shall be credited to the Department in a manner acceptable to the Department in the event such land, facilities, or

equipment are subsequently disposed of through sale or lease.

A-6.  Insofar as it is within its power and reasonable, the Sponsor shall, either by the acquisition and retention of property
interest. in fee or easement, or by appropriate local zoning action. prevent the construction of any object which may constitute

an obstruction to air navigation under the appropriate category of Fedecal Air Regulation Part 77, 14 CFR 77,

A-7.  Insofaras it is within its power and reasonable, the Sponsor shall restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate
vicinity of the airport 1o activities and purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and taking off of
aircraft, and the noise produced by such operations by adoption of zoning laws, by acquisition and the retention of property

interest, in fee or ensement,

A-8.  Terminal building spaces constructed under this Agreement shall be for the use of the general public, The Sponsor
agrees that it will not use any space so constructed for private use, or charge fees for the use of such space, without the written
approval of the Department.

A-9.  The Sponsor is responsible for maintaining an active System for Award Manogement (SAM) Registration and Data
Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number and ensuring that all SAM/DUNS information is current throughout the
lifecycle of this Agreement, in accordance with 2 CFR 25.200(a)(2). 1f SAM/DUNS information becomes inactive, expired.

or incorrect, the Sponsor shall not be able to do any grant related business with the FAA. including the obligation and/or

DOA FORM REVISFD 122018 Page Bof 12



SECTION B: SPONSOR'S ASSURANCES: PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

B-1.  The Sponsor shall submit draft plans and specifications, or approvad alternata, for the project for review by the
Division prior to advertising for bids on the Project. Should bids not be required on the project, the Sponsor shall submit a
detailed scope of work and estimated costs prior (o requesting “Grant Execution and Notice to Proceed” for undenaking the
project. All plans (and alternate) shall be supported by the engineer's report. A list of deliverables from the Sponsor to the

Division will be communicated with the Airport Project Manager.

B-2.  Bids will be taken in accordance with G.S. § 143-129 and oll applicable NCDOT policies. The Department will
ppprove or reject the Sponsor’s request to employ a specific contractor.  Sponsor will be directly notified of approval, Al
contractor(s) who bid or submit proposals for contracts in connection with this project must submit a statement of non-collusion

to the Sponsar.

B-3.  Unless otherwise approved by the Division, the Sponsor shall not commence construction or award construction

contracts on the project until a “Grant Execution and Notice to Proceed” is provided by the Division.

B-4.  The Sponsor shall submit to the Division quarterly status reports (AV-502) according to the following schedule for
periods ending: March 31, June 30, September 30, ond December 31.

B-5.  The Sponsor shall notify the Division of any significant issues, meetings, audits, or inspections conceening this project

involving the Sponsor, contractor(s), consultant(s}, and/or ony interested pacties,

B-6.  The Sponsor shall notify the Division within thirty (30) days of completion of all work performed under this
Agreement,

DOA FORM REVISED 1272018 Page [} of 12



A0\ FAA
i Airports

ASSURANCES
Airport Sponsors

A. General.

1. These assurances shall be complied with in the performance of grant agreements for
airport development, airport planning, and noise compatibility program grants for
airport sponsors,

2. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project application by
sponsors requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle VTI, as
amended. As used herein, the term "public agency sponsor” means a pubiic agency
with control of a public-use airport; the term "private sponsor” means a private owner
of a public-use airport; and the term "sponsor” includes both public agency sponsors
and private sponsors.

3. Upon acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are incorporated
in and become part of this grant agreement.

B. Duration and Applicability.

1. Airport development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by a
Public Agency Sponsor.

The terms, conditions and assurances of this grant agreement shall remain in full
force and effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed or equipment
acquired for an airport development or noise compatibility program project, or
throughout the useful life of the project items installed within a facility under a noise
compatibility program project, but in any event not to exceed twenty (20) years from
the dute of acceptance of a grant offer of Federal funds for the project. However,
there shall be no limit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights
and Airport Revenue so long as the airport is used as an airport. There shall be no
limit on the duration of the terms, conditions, and assurances with respect to real
property acquired with federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil Rights
assurance shall be specified in the assurances.

2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private
Sponsor.

The preceding paragraph 1 also applies to a private sponsor except that the useful life
of project items installed within a facility or the useful life of the facilities developed
or equipment acquired under an airport development or noise compatibility program
project shall be no less than ten (10) years from the date of acceptance of Federal aid
for the project.

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 1 of 20



z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended

(Pub. L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202 of Pub. L. 110-252).

Executive Orders

cRO0OoPR

f.

Executive Order 11246 - Equal Employment Opportunity’

Executive Order 11990 - Protection of Wetlands

Executive Order 11998 — Flood Plain Management

Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmentat Review of Federal Programs
Executive Order 12699 - Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New
Building Constsuction'

Executive Order 12898 - Environmental Justice

Federal Regulations

a.

b.

s

2 CFR Part 180 - OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment
and Suspension (Nonprocurement).

2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. [OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles
Applicable to Grants and Contracts with State and Local Governments, and OMB
Circular A-133 - Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations].* 6

2 CFR Part 1200 — Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment

14 CFR Part 13 - Investigative and Enforcement Procedures14 CFR Part 16 -
Rules of Practice For Federally Assisted Airport Enforcement Proceedings.

14 CFR Part 150 - Airport noise compatibility planning.

28 CFR Part 35- Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local
Government Services.

28 CFR § 50.3 - U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

29 CFR Part 1 - Procedures for predetermination of wage rates.’

29 CFR Part 3 - Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work
financed in whole or part by loans or grants from the United States.'

29 CFR Part 5 - Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering
federally financed and assisted construction (aise labor standards provisions
applicable to non-construction contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act).!

41 CFR Part 60 - Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and federally assisted
contracting requirements).

49 CFR Part 18 - Uniform administrative requirements for grants and cooperative
agreements to state and local governments.’

. 49 CFR Part 20 - New restrictions on lobbying.

49 CFR Part 21 — Nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation - effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964,

49 CFR Part 23 - Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport
Concessions.

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 3 of 20



% Cost principles established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart E must be used as
guidelines for determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses.

¢ Audit requirements established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart F are the guidelines
for audits.

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor.
a. Public Agency Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed
project; that a resolution, motion or similar action has been duly adopted or passed as
an official act of the applicant's governing body authorizing the filing of the
application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and
directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the
applicant to act in connection with the application and to pravide such additional
information as may be required.

b. Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this grant and to finance and carry out the proposed
project and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this grant agreernent.
It shall designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize
that person to file this application, including all understandings and assurances
contained therein; to act in connection with this application; and to provide such
additional information as may be required.

3. Sponsor Fund Availability.

It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to
be paid by the United States. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and
maintenance of items funded under this grant agreement which it will own or control.

4, Good Title,

a. It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the
Secretary, to the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance
satisfactory to the Secretary that good title will be acquired.

b. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of the
sponsor, it holds good title satisfactory to the Secretary to that portion of the
property upen which Federal funds will be expended or will give assurance to the
Secretary that good title will be obtained.

5. Preserving Rights and Powers.

a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of
the rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and
assurances in this grant agreement without the written approval of the Secretary,
and will act promptly to acquire, extinguish or modify any outstanding rights or
claims of right of others which would interfere with such performance by the
sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the Secretary.

Afrport Sponsor Assurances 372014 Page 5 of 20



6. Consistency with Local Plans,

The project is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of
this application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the
project is lacated to plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

7. Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the
praject may be located.

8. Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49,
United States Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties
using the airport at which project is proposed.

9. Public Hearings.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway
extension, it has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of
considering the economic, social, and environmental effects of the irport or runway
location and its consistency with goals and objectives of such planning as has been
carried out by the community and it shall, when requested by the Secretary, submit a
copy of the transcript of such hearings to the Secretary. Further, for such projects, it
has on its management board either voting representation from the communities
where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right to
petition the Secretary concerning a proposed project.

10. Metropolitan Planning Organization.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway
extension at a medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has
provided upon request to the metropolitan planning organization in the area in which
the airport is located, if any, a copy of the proposed amendment to the airport layout
plan to depict the project and a copy of any airport master plan in which the project is
described or depicted.

11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance.

With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or
reconstruction of pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has
implemented an effective airport pavement maintenance-management program and it
assures that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed,
reconstructed or repaired with Federal financial assistance at the airport. It will
provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management programs as
the Secretary determines may be useful.

12, Terminal Development Prerequisites.

For projects which include terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in
Title 49, it has, on the date of submittal of the project grant application, all the safety
equipment required for certification of such airport under section 44706 of Title 49,
United States Code, and all the security equipment required by rule ar regulation, and

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 7 of 20



specifications, and schedules shall also be subject to approval of the Secretary, and
incorporated into this grant agreement.

17. Construction Inspection and Approval.

1t will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site
throughout the project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications,
and schedules approved by the Secretary for the project. It shall subject the
construction work on any project contained in an approved project application to
inspection and approval by the Secretary and such work shall be in accordance with
regulations and procedures prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations and
procedures shall require such cost and progress reporting by the SpPONSOr Of SPeNsors
of such project as the Secretary shall deem necessary.

18. Planning Projects.
In carrying out planning projects:

b.

It will execute the project in accordance with the approved program narrative
contained in the project application or with the modifications similarly approved.

It will furnish the Secretary with such periodic reports as required pertaining to
the planning project and planning work activities.

It will include in all published material prepared in connection with the planning
project a notice that the material was prepared under a grant provided by the
United States.

It will make such material available for examination by the public, and agrees that
no materjal prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to copyright in
the United States or any other country.

It will give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and
otherwise use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant.

It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the sponsor's employment of
specific consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project as
well as the right to disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional
services.

It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the use of the sponsor's
employees (o do all or any part of the project.

It understands and agrees that the Secretary's approval of this project grant or the
Secretary's approval of any planning material developed as part of this grant does
not constitute or imply any assurance or commitment on the part of the Secretary
to approve any pending or future application for a Federal airport grant.

19. Operation and Maintenance,

a.

The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of
the airport, other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be
operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance with
the minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable Federal,

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 9 of 20



to engage in any aeronautical activity for furnishing services to the public at the
airport, the sponsor will insert and enforce provisions requiring the contractor to-

1) furnish said services on a reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, basis to
all users thereof, and

2) charge reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, prices for each unit or
service, provided that the contractor may be allowed to make reasonable and
nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions
to volume purchasers.

c. Each fixed-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, fees,
rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other fixed-based
operators making the same or similar uses of such airport and utilizing the same
or similar facilities.

d. Each air carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use

any fixed-based operator that is authorized or permitted by the airport to serve any
air carrier at such airport.

e. Each air carrier using such airport (whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or subtenant
of another air carrier tenant) shall be subject to such nondiscriminatory and
substantially comparable rules, regulations, conditions, rates, fees, rentals, and
other charges with respect to facilities directly and substantially related to
providing air transportation as are applicable to all such air carriers which make
similar use of such airport and utilize similar facilities, subject to reasonable
classifications such as tenants or non-tenants and signatory carriers and non-
signatory carriers. Classification or status as tenant or signatory shali not be
unreasonably withheld by any airport provided an air carrier assumes obligations
substantially similar to thase already imposed on air carriers in such classification
or status,

f. It will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which operates to prevent any
person, firm, or corporation operating aircraft on the airport from performing any
services on its own aircraft with its own employees [including, but not limited to
maintenance, repair, and fueling] that it may choose to perform.

g. In the event the sponsor itself exercises any of the rights and privileges referred to
in this assurance, the services involved will be provided on the same conditions as
would apply to the furnishing of such services by commercial aeronautical service
providers authorized by the sponsor under these provisions.

h. The sponsor may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory,
conditions to be met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe
and efficient operation of the airport.

i. The sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical
use of the airport if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the airport or
necessary to serve the civil aviation needs of the public.

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 11 of 20



operator’s facilities, including the airport, to support not only the airport but
also the airport owner or operator's general debt obligations or other facilities,
then this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by the airport (and, in
the case of a public airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply.

2) If the Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a public
sponsor and provides funding for any portion of the public sponsor’s
acquisition of land, this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by the
sale shall not apply to certain proceeds from the sale. This is conditioned on
repayment to the Secretary by the private owner of an amount equal to the
remaining unamortized portion (amortized over a 20-year period) of any
airport improvement grant made to the private owner for any purpose other
than land acquisition on or after October 1, 1996, plus an amount equal to the
federal share of the current fair market value of any land acquired with an
airport improvement grant made to that airport on or after October 1, 1996.

3) Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, production,
lease, or other means at a general aviation airport (as defined at Section 47102
of title 49 United States Code), if the FAA determines the airport sponsor
meets the requirements set forth in Sec. 813 of Public Law 112-95.

b. As part of the annual audit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the
sponsor will direct that the audit will review, and the resulting audit report will
provide an opinion conceming, the use of airport revenue and taxes in paragraph
(a), and indicating whether funds paid or transferred to the owner or operator are
paid or transferred in a manner consistent with Title 49, United States Code and
any other applicable provision of law, including any regulation promulgated by
the Secretary or Administrator.

c. Any civil penalties or other sanctions will be imposed for violation of this
assurance in accordance with the provisions of Section 47107 of Title 49, United
States Code.

26. Reports and Inspections.
It will:

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports as
the Secretary may reasonably request and make such reports available to the
public; make available to the public at reasonable times and places a report of the
airport budget in a format prescribed by the Secretary;

b. for airport development projects, make the airport and ail airport records and
documents affecting the airport, including deeds, leases, operation and use
agreements, regulations and other instruments, available for inspection by any
duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request;

¢. for noise compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating to
the project and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and assurances
of this grant agreement including deeds, leases, agreements, regulations, and other
instruments, available for inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary
upon reasonable request; and

Airpont Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 13 of 20



roads), including all proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport
facilities;

3) the location of all existing and proposed nonaviation areas and of ail existing
improvements thereon; and

4) all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the airport’s
property boundary. Such airpost layout plans and each amendment, revision,
or modification thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary which
appraval shall be evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized
representative of the Secretary on the face of the airport layout plan. The
sponsor will not make or permit any changes or alterations in the airport or
any of its facilities which are not in conformity with the airport layout plan as
approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinion of the Secretary,
adversely affect the safety, wtility or efficiency of the airport.

b. If a change or alteration in the airport or the facilities is made which the Secretary
determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any federally
owned, leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is not in
conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or
operator will, if requested, by the Secretary (1) eliminate such adverse effect in a
manner approved by the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such
property (or replacement thereof) to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs
of restoring such property (or replacement thereof) to the level of safety, utitity,
efficiency, and cost of operation existing before the unapproved change in the
airport or its facilities except in the case of a relocation or replacement of an
existing airport facility due to a change in the Secretary’s design standards beyond
the control of the airport sponsor.

30. Civil Rights.

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United
States shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or
disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in any activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds
received from this grant.

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility and program as found and defined in §§
21.23 (b) and 21.23 (e) of 49 CFR § 21, the sponsor will facilitate all programs,
operate all facilities, or conduct all programs in compliance with all non-
discrimination requirements imposed by, or pursuant to these assurances.

b. Applicability

1) Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other federal
assistance) for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements
extend to all of the sponsor's programs and activities.

2) Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other federal financial assistance to
construct, expand, renovate, remodel, alter or acquire a facility, or partof a
facility, the assurance extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in
connection therewith,

Airport Sponsor Assurances 3/2014 Page 15of 20



covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits,
or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other parties:

a) For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under
the applicable activity, project, or program; and

b) For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real
property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or
program,

f. It will provide for such methods of administration for the progtam as are found by
the Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients,
sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successars in
interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program
will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the regulations,
and this assurance.

g. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with
regard to any matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

31. Disposal of Land.

a. For land purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes,
including land serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the land
is na longer needed for such purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest
practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of such disposition which is
proportionate to the United States' share of acquisition of such land wilt be, at the
discretion of the Secretary, (1) reinvested in another project at the airport, or (2)
transferred to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The
Secretary shall give preference to the following, in descending order, (1)
reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project, (2) reinvestment in an
approved project that is eligible for grant funding under Section 471 17(e) of title
49 United States Code, (3) reinvestment in an approved airport development
project that is eligible for grant funding under Sections 47114, 471 15, or 47117 of
title 49 United States Code, (4) transferred to an eligible sponsor of another public
airport to be reinvested in an approved noise compatibility project at that airpot,
and (5) paid to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway Trust Fund. If
land acquired under a grant for noise compatibility purposes is leased at fair
market value and consistent with noise buffering purposes, the lease will not be
considered a disposal of the land. Revenues derived from such a lease may be
used for an approved airport development project that would otherwise be eligible
for grant funding or any permitted use of airport revenue.

b. For land purchased under a grant for airport development purposes (other than
noise compatibility), it will, when the land is no longer needed for airport
purposes, dispose of such land at fair market value or make available to the
Secretary an amount equal to the United States’ proportionate share of the fair
market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds of such disposition which
is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition of such {and
will, (1) upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred to another

Airport Sponsor Assurances /2014 Page 17 of 20



with applicable state policies, standards, and specifications approved by the
Secretary.
35. Relocation and Real Property Acquisition.

a. It will be guided in acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable under
State law, by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 24 and
will pay or reimburse property owners for necessary expenses as specified in
Subpart B.

b. It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in
Subpart C and fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance to displaced
persons as required in Subpart D and E of 49 CFR Part 24.

c. It will make available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement,
comparable replacement dwellings to displaced persons in accordance with
Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24.

36. Access By Intercity Buses.

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable,
intercity buses or other modes of transportation to have access to the airport;
however, it has no obligation to fund special facilities for intercity buses or for other
modes of transportation.

37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises.

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in
the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26,
or in the award and performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49
CFR Part 23. In addition, the sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin or sex in the administration of its DBE and ACDBE programs
or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession

contracts. The sponsor’s DBE and ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts
26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are incorporated by reference in this

agreement. Implementation of these programs is a legal obligation and failure to
carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification
to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may
impose sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases,
refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud
Civil Remedies Act of 1936 (31 U.S.C. 3801).

38. Hangar Construction.

If the airport owner or operator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar
is to be constructed at the airport for the aircraft at the aircraft owner’s expense, the
airport owner or operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term
lease that is subject to such terms and conditions on the hangar as the airport owner or
operator may impose,

Airport Sponsor Assurances 32014 Page 19 0f 20



_Ef




